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Independent Auditor's Report to the Shareholders Al-Arabiya Real Estate Company K.5.C.P.

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Oipinion

We have audited the consofidated financial statements of Al-frabiva Real Estate Company KS.CP. (the “Parent
Company”) and its subsidiaries {collectivety the “Group”], which comprise the consolidated siatement of financal
position as at 31 December 2023, and the consofidated statement of Income, consalidated statement of comprehensive

income, consolidated staterment of changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the vear
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Groug a5 at 31 Decervber 2023, and its consolidated financial perfermance and its
consofidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards [IFRS
Bocounting Standards) (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our sudit in accordance with International Standards en Auditing (154s). Our responstbilities under those
standards gre further described in the Auditors” Responsibilities for the Sudit of the Consolidated Financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics far
Professional Accountants {Including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) and we have fulfiled our ather
ethical responsibilities in dccordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropreate to provide 2 basls for our oplnion,

HKey Audit Matters

Key audit matiess are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our aedit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on this matter.

| Eey audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Fair value of investment properties '
The Group’s investment properties are carried at | Our audit procedures included the following:
KD 92,451,398 in the consolidsted statement of | #  We evaluated the design of controls ralated to the valuation of
financial pasition a4 at 31 Decemnber 2023 and investrment properties and determined that these controls had
the net fair wvalue gan presanted in the been implemented appropriately,
consolidated statement of income amounted to | #  We  assessed the external waluer's skilis, competence,
KD 1B46.510, The Group measures (s objectivity and cagabilities and read their terms of engagement
Imvastmaent propertiog at fair value. with the Group to determine that the scope of thedr work was
The determination of fair walue of these sufficient for audit purposes.
investment properties is based on valuations | = We agreed the tofal waluation in the valuers repart o the
performed by external valuers using either the amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
markel comparable approach or the capitaiized piasition,
income approach =  We tested the data provided bo the valuer by the Group, on a
The Group's discounted future cash flows sample Basis,
analysis and the assessment of the ewpected | »  we tested the valuation of selected properties performed by
remaining holding pericd and  income the external vatuers and assessed whether the valuation of the
projections on the existing operating assets properties was performed in accordance with the requirements
requires management 1o  apply  significant of IFRSs. We utilized our internal specialist to perform this
jedgements and make significant estimates testing for properties which are located outside Kuwalt,
refated to future rental rates, capitalization rates | & Where we identified estimates that were outside acceptable
and discount rates. parameters, weo discussed these with the  valuers and
The existence of significant estimation | management to understand the rationake behind the estimanes
uncerfainty warrants specific audit focus in this riade,
area as any bias or error in determining the fair | We performed  censitivty analyses on the  significant
value could lead to a material misstaternent in astumptions to evsluate the extent of ther impact on the
the consolidated financial statements and deterrrination of Fair values
conseguently we have determined this lobea |« We reperformed  the  arithmatical accuracy of the
key audit matter. determination of fair vaiue
Refer to note 5 In the consolidated fmancial | =  We assessed the disclosures made in the consalidat ed financial
statements for further detalls relating to this staternents refating to this matter agaknst the requirements of
matter. IFRSs
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Independent Auditer's Report to the Shareholders Al-Arabiys Rea! Estate Company K.5.CP, (cantinued)
Report on the Audit of the Consalidated Financial Statements |continued|

Other Infarmation

PManagement i respontible for the other information. Cther information consists of the Information included in the
Group's 2023 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report therean, We

obtained the repart of the Parent Company's Board of Directors, prior to the date of gur auditor's report, and we expect
to obtain the remaining sections of the Annual Report after the date of our auditer's report.

Cur opinion on the consolidated finandal statements does not cover the other information and we do nat and will not
express any farm of assurance conclusian thereon.

Im conmection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our resgonsibility is to read the other Information
identified abowve and, in doing so, comsider whether the other information s materdally Inconsistent with the

consolidated financial statements or our knowledae obtained in the awdit, or otherwiss appears to be materially
risstaled

¥, basad on the work we have performed on the other information that we ablained pricr to the date of this suditar's
report, we conclude that there is 3 material misstatemant of this ather infarmation, we are required te report that fact
We have nothing to report In this regard

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Govemance for the Consolidated Financial 5tatements

Management is responsible fer the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements In
accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of consalidated frandal statements that are fres fram material misstatement, whether due to fraud ar persr

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as & golng concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concerm
basis of accounting unless management either Intends to Rguidate the Groug or to cease operations, or has no realistic
aiternative bul 1o do 5o,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibiities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectivas are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whale are
free frarm material mistaternent, whether due to fraud or errer, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accardance
WwWith i5AL will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arkse from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected toinfluence the economic
ceclsions of wsers taken Based on these consolidated financial staterments

As part of an audit in sccordance with 15As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also!

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and abtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of net detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invehe collusion, forgery, intentional
GmEssOns, misrepresentations, or the averride ef internal cantrodl,

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevamt 16 thie audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opindon an the effectivensss of the Group's internal
comtrol

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polictes used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
retated disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basts of accounting and, based on the
sudit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists; related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Growp's ability to continue as a going concern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's regart o the refated disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such dischosures are inadequate, (o modify our opinion. Our conchistons are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditer's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Gioup to cease to continue as a golng concern
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Sharehalders Sl-Arablya Aeal Estate Company K.5.C.P. [continuad)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 5ietements [continued)

Auditor's Responsibifities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial staterments represent the underlying transactions and events
i & mannar that achigves fair presantation.

=  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements, We are responsible for the
direction, supenfsion and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely resgonsible for our audit opinion.

We commiunicate to those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intarnal control that we identify during
our audit

We also provide to those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with rolevant ethical
reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated to those charged with governance, we determing those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financal statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters, We describe these matters in our awditor's report anless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 3 matter should not be comrunlcated n aur

report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasanably be expected to outweigh the publis intorest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

Furthermare, in our opinion, preper books of accounts have been kept by the Parent Company and the consalidated
financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors relating to
these consofidated financial staiements, are in accordance therewith. We further report that we obtained all the
information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the comsolidated financial
statements incorperate all information that is required by the Companies Law Mol of 2016, as amended, and its
executive regulations, as amended; and by the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of
Association, as amended, that an inventory was duly carried out; and thaz, to the best of our knowledge and balef, no
vigiations of the Companies Low No.1 of 201€, as amended, and its executlve regulations, 15 amended; or of the Parent
Company’s Memarandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred during the year
enced 31 December 2023 that might have had a material effect on the business of the Parent Company or on Its financial
pasition, except that the Parent Company has directly imvested in shares of certain companles, whose objectives are
different from the Parent Caompany’s (Note 7).

We further report that, dering the course of our audit, we have ot become sware of any vickations of the provisions of
Law Mo ¥ of 2010 concerning the Capital Markets Authority and its refated repulations during the year ended

31 December 2023 that might have had a material effect on the business of the Parent Cormpany or an its financial
positdon,

Talal ¥. al-Muzaini
LUcense Mo, 200 4
Deloitte & Touche - &l-Wazzan & Co:

Kiwalt, 24 darch 2024
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AkArabiya Real Estate Company K.5.CF,
And its subsidiaries
State of Kiwat

Cansolidated Statement of Fimanclal Position as at 31 Decemnber 2023

{AaN amounts ore in Kuwoit’ Biner)

Mon-current assets

Property, plant and eguipmeant
Investment properties
Inwastment in an associate

Financial asseis at falrvaiue through ather

comprahensive income
Trade and othar recelvables

Current atsets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivaionts

Total Assets

Equity & Liabilities

Equity

Share capital

Shara premium

Tieadiiry shares

Statutory reserve
Valuntary resenve

(ther reservas

Retained earnings flaccumulated losses)
Total equity

Liahilitias

Mon-current liahilities
Post-empboyment benefits
Loans and bank facilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Loans and bank facEities

Total lEabikties
Total equity and llabilites

The attached motes 1 1o 29 form par

7. Emad lawad Bukbameen
Chairman

Notes

B s W W ke

10

11
12
13

15

31-Dec 31-Dec-22 01-Jan 2022
023 {Restated = [Restated =
Note 28} Note 28)

14,316,130 14,735,523 15,188,135
92,461,398 109,574,582 106,337 647
439,250 SEG, Ta4q 548,514
8,836,158 9,579,850 9,902 650
1,157,853 = -
117,350,789 134 857,039 132,171,945
3,620,168 1,661,175 2,375,804
2,039,115 1,725.337 974,012
5,661,281 3,384,412 3,249 B16
122,912,070 138,241,451 135,521,762
36,920,973 50,884,499 50,884 499
- 37,188 327,188
1825, 786) (714, 784) {714,784)
185,65 4,744,342 4, T4, 352
: 174,732 174,732
11.727,863) F26,571 Sa5.825
2,480,504 {15,309, E38) [21,370,413)
37132974 36,832,760 34,731439
30,542 EELR ) 80,705
2 53,536,554 56,148,132
20,582 53,871,550 56438437
3,733,004 8,324,730 7,333,658
81,725,510 39,112,411 30007 818
B5.458,514 A7 437 141 44 351,486
B5,779.006 101,308 691 104,790,323
132,812,070 138241 451 135,521, 76
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Al-Arabiya Real Estate Company KS.CP. Er ’Ji
And s subsidiaries e

state al Kuwait

Consalidated Statement of Income far the year ended 31 Decamber 2023
{Al amounts are fn Kuwalth o)

Motes 2023 2022

REVEMUES
Bental income from mvestment properties 4 3EE,635 4 A%7 017
Cperating Income from hotel 4,567 EBE2 4,514 557
Unrealized gain from valuation of investment properties 5 1,846,510 3,486, T8
Gain from sale of inwestment progeries 5 1,400,567 176,509
Inwestrnent incarme iy 231,669 178,366
Group's shere in essociates’ loss (11,000 -
Other income 1E 1,315 1E5 186,431

13,739 428 13,330,630
EXPENSES
Investrmient progerted expenies 827 85A 820,248
Operating expenies of hotel 3,458,018 3,509,300
Finance costs 5,207,233 4 085 641
Fareign eurrency exchange differences 15,777 109,665
Pravision for expected credit Insses 186,226 .
Staff costs 19 355,541 283100
Othar expansac o2l 1,173,287 1,678,310
Prowision no longer regulred 16 {1,037, 354) -
Depreciation 4 693,135 697 085

10,881,769 11,182,941
Pet profit for the year before deductions 2,857,659 2,147,679
Conwibution to Kuwait foundaton for the advancement of
SElEmEE 125,719 -
Matianal Labor support tax 146,6B5] {62,217}
Zalkat {18,585 {24,8E7)
Met profit far the year 2,106,670 2,060,575
Bask and diluted sarnings per share [fills) 21 7.58 5.63

The attached notes 1 to 29 form part of these conseldated fnancial staternenta

[E]]
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Al-Arahiya Real Estate Company K.5.C.0. & _'|1I
And Its subsidiaries vty
State of Kuwalt sia | e

Conaslidated Statermant of Comprahansive Income for the year ended 31 December 2023
(Al armounts gre in Kewaid| Dingr)

2023 2022
Motes {Restabed -
Note 28)
Mot profit for the yoar 2,766,670 20RO ETE
Other comprehensive income
Mtermg that pre or my be reclossified o the consolldated stotement
af incoma;
Foraign currency translation 14 192,997} B3,546
[193,997) 63,546
tterns thot wilf nod be rectossified subsequently o the conselideied
stafement of incame;
Change In fair value of financkal assets at fair valug through other 14
comprehensive income |2, 207,030} 71200
{2,207,030) 77300
Total other comprehensive (boss)) intarme [2,400,027} 1410, 746
Total comprehensive income for the year 366,643 2,301,321

The attached notes 1 te 29 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Al-Arzbiva Real Estate Company K.5.0P,
Bind its subsidiaries
State af Kuwalt

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 Decemiar 2033

HAll prmownts are 1 Kuvwaitl Binarl

Hotes 2023 2022

; {Restated - Note 28)
Net prafit for the year 2,765,670 2,060,575
Adlustments for:
Depreciation 4 BD3, 135 H97,0B5
Froviskon charged /[ Reversal| during the year 185,226 (24,269
Frovision nolanger reguired (1,037 394) E
Unreadized galn from valuation of Investment properties 5 (L,BEd8,510) (2,486, 7E0|
Group's share in 3ssockates’ loss 11,000
incarme from financ als assets at FUTOC {231 EA9) (128,386
Finance Costs 5,207,233 4,085,641
Gam from sale of investment properties 5 (1.200.567] (178,509
Closed dividends payable {953,957
Pravizion for emploees end of sarvices banafits 37 BHZ 44,708
Operating profit befare change i working capital 3,442,019 3,071,648
Trade and other receivables 35,550 £38,898
Trae and ather payasies §3E3bEL 1;015,704
Cash flows generated from operations 3,355,178 4,726,250
Paid from employees end of service benefits {1032, 756] :
et Cech flows generated from operating activithes 3,253,082 4726 250
Investing Activities
Purchase of progarty, plant and eguipment [333,051] [244.773)
Purchase of investment throdegh CHC) 11,063,337| -
Proceeds fram sale of investment propértias 14,653,874 BG5S E5H
Irvestmient Incoms recaived I:'I‘.:I._,EEB 11_9-,.3_!2_5___
Met cash flows generated from investing acthvitias 13,489,175 148471
Finamcing Activitles
Paid for lsans and bank facilitles {5,498, 743} (516,285
Firtance cost paid 6,637,964} 14,085,641
Paymant of kease labilitias ) [2aa00) 124,642
Py for purchase of treasury shanes (207,815} 2
proceeds from sale of treasury shares 41,186 &
Metcash Mows used in financing acthities (16,313,535} (4,627,268
Met change In cash and cash equivalents 428,722 BAB453
Forelgn currency wanslation adjustments (112 B44) {99,228
Cash and Cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year 9 .‘_n_._?jlil..l:_'l? 57-‘_4_1]3:!_
Cash and Cash eguivalents at the end of the year 5 2,039,115 1,723,337

The amached notes 1 1o 29 form part of these consodidared financial staterments.
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Al-Arabiya Real Estate Company K.5.C.P. . '11
And its subsidiaries ozt
skate of Kuwait i

Motes to the Consalidated Pinancial Stafements for the year anded 31 Dacember 20213

(AN aroinbs ore b Kuwalt! D aniess otherwlse shated)

3.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Al-Argbhva Real Eslate Company ¥5.CP, the "Parent Company” wes eslablished in the Stove of Huwalt on
21 September 1976 and is lizted in Bowrsa Kuwalt.

The hizind effice af the Parent Cemparmy 5 lacated at Sharg, Ahmes Al-laber 51, Emad Cormmercial Center, State
of Kuwait, The main abjectives of the Parent Company Bre;

- Carpging auf warious real estate commercl sctlvities inchuding procurement, safe of investments in Ends
and properties, managing properties far others, undertaking contracting activitdes and trading in 24 materials
related tor construction of requlred for it

- Letting up commercial markets, teurism, Sport and entertainment facilitias.

- fonstructing, acquirng and managing hoteli and it loudsm activities,

- Mapaging rezl pstate porlalios for the Parent Carmpany onky and investment in the drares and pragects o
ather companies whose activities ace similar fo the Parent Company’s activithes, establish and manage real
psiate investrment funds only, and we the available financial surplus of the Parent Company for imestment
Im financial and real estate portfolics managed by specialized companies,

The Parent Company is 3 subsidiary of Bukhamseen Group Holding Company K.5.C. (Holding) |the “Ultimats
Farent Company™],
These consadidated financial staterments include the linencial seatements af the Parent Compary snd [t whally

owned subsidiary and Hotel (together referred to a5 *the Growp"| as follows:
Incasporation  Activity Legal Owmershls  Dwnership

country entity (%) (¥l

31 December 31 Decamber

i S | *
Huliday b Hotel T Kuwalt services  Hotel 106G 10
AREC Properties Compary Limited LIAE Realestate  LLL, 103 100

The consolidated financial starements for the year enced 31 December 2022 have been approved by the
shareholders of the Parent Company in thelr annuat general assembly meeting [“4GM") held on 13 Aprit 2033,
The corsolidated financlal statements of the Perent Company for the year ended 31 December 203 warg
authorired for [ssue In accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors o 24 March 2024, The
shareholders of the Group have the powes to amend these consolidated financizl stataments In the Gensaral
Assambly Mesting,

GOING CONCERN

The Board af directors of the parent company have, at the time of approving the consalidated financial
staternents, 3 reasonzble expectation that the group have adequate resources o contime in opecations
existence far the foresegable future in addition to meet its obligaticns when $hey fall due {refer ta nots 25.2),
This, thay continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Baiis of preparation

These consolidated financiad siaterments hkave been prepared in aocordance with International Francial
Reporting Standards ['FRS accounting sftandarce |isiued by the Intermatonal Atcounting Standards Soard
[“|ASE") , under the historical east cammntion as madified for the revaluation at falr velue of financlal assets at
fak value through other comprehensive iIncoms and investment properiies.

The consclidated financial statements are presenfed in Kuwaitl Oinars "X0"), which i also the Parent
Campany’s functional and pressntation currency.

Mew and revised accounting standards

3.2.1 Effective for the current year

Following standard, interpretation or amendment are effective from the current year and are adopied by the

Group, however, these does not fave any impact on the consolidated fipancial statermerts of the year unless

otherwise stiled bdow

& [FRS 17, ‘Insurance canfracts’ — This-standard replaces [FRS 4, which permits 3 wide vaviely of practices in
aecounting fer Irsurance contracts, [FRS 17 wall Fundarmentally change the accounting by all entities that
issur insurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participation features.
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Al-Arabiya Real Estate Company KS.C.P. |
And its subsidiaries il
State of Kuwait T

Motes ba the Cansalidatod Financial Statements for the year snded 31 Decambar 2023
FAD praouinds gre in Kt Dingr widess otherwdss stafed)

s Amendments ta A5 1 and IFAS Practice statamant 2 = Diedocure of accounting policles = The amendments
ehange the requirersents in 1A% 1 with rFagard to disclasure of accounting policies. The amend ments replace
#ll instances of the term ‘significant accounting policies’ with ‘'matenal® accounting policy iInformation
Accounting policy Infermation Is matesied if, wher considered together with other information included in
an gntity’s financial statements, it can reasonakly be expected to infleence decisions that the primary users
of general purposs financlal statements make cn the basls of those financia! staternents.

= Amebdments to lAS 8 - The smendments replace the definition of a changs in accounting estimates with a
definiten of accounting estimates, Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amaunts
im financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainky®

o Amendment to WS 12 - deferred tax related to assats and ligbilites arising from a single transaction
The amendments introduce 8 further axception fram the initial recognition exemption, Under the
amandments, an antity does not apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions that give rlza ta
equal texable and deductibls tempgorary differences. Depending on the applicable tax bw, egual taxable and
deductible tamporary differences may arise on initial recognition of an asset and lizbdity in & transaction
that is not & business camblnation and atfects nelthar aceaunting prafit nor taxkable profit

#« Amendment o 1AS 12 - International tax referm - pitlar fwo model reles - Thase amentdments gve
companies iemparary exception {rorm accowinting for deferred taxes arising fram. the Organization for
Ecanomic Co-operation and Development's (QECD) internationa! tax reform, Following the amendments
an entity ls required to disclose that it has applied the ceception and to disclade separately (b currert 1ay
expense [income] refated to Fillar Two income tases

3.2.2 Standards (ssued but not yet effective

Standard, interpretation, Description Effective date
amendments

Amendmeant to |45 1 - Clagsification of kapilities - a8 cursent ar non-current; Tha 1 lanugey 2024
Current and Mon-current  amendments clarify that the classification of kabiSties as current

lfabilities af non-curcent is based on rights that ara in axistence at the and

ol the reparting period, specily that elassification 4 uneflected
by expectations about whather an entity will exercise s right o
defer settlernent of a liabifliby, exglaln that rights 2re in exisienos
il cowenants are complied with at the end of the reportng
period, and introduce & definition of “sattlement’ to make clear
that settlement refers to the tranafer to the counterparty of
cash, eguity instruments, other assats or sarvices,

Mor-current fatdlities with covenants - The ameadments specify
that only covenants that an entity is required b0 comply with on
or bafore the end of the regarting sarod afect the antity's fpht
to defer setthament of a liability for at least terelve months after
the raporting dste {and therefore must be comsldersd i
assessng the classification of the liabllitsy as cerrsng or
NONCUrTent),

Won-current abilties
with covenants

Amendmeants o IAS T arnd  Thesa amendments reguire disclosures to enbance the 1 January 2024
IFRS T on Supplier finance  transparency of supplier finance arrangements and their affects
arrangements on a company’s liahilities, cash flows and exposure to Hgoldity

rise. The disclosure requirerments are the IASE's rasporsa 10

investors concerns that. some companies supplier finance

arrangements are not sufficlantly visible, hinderng Investors'

anansis,

0
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Amendrment o fFRS 16 =
l=ases 01 sale and

The amendments to IFAS 16 add subssquent measurement
requitements for sale and |easeback transactions that satisfy the

1 Janiary 2024

leaseback requiremants m |FRS 15 to be accounted for as 3 sale. The

amendrments: reguire the aeller-leiaes 9 determine ‘lease

paymernts’ or Fevised lease payments’ such thak the seller-lessee

chped mot recogrice @ gain or loss that related to the right of use

retained by the saller-assee, after the commencement date. The

armendrmients do not affect the gain or loss recognised by the

seller-sesses relating to the partial o full termination of a lease.

Without these naw raguirements. @ seller-lesses may have

recognised & ghin on the right of use it retaine solely because of

a remaasurement of the lease labllity (for example, following &

lease modification or change in the lease term) applying the

general reguirements i IFRS 16, This could have been

particularly the case in # leaseback that includes varizble lease

payments that do not depend an an index or rate,
IFAS 51 - General Thiz standard includes the core framawork for the disclosurs o 1 Januasy 2024
rgquirements for material information about sustainabilityerolated rsks and - subject to
disclasure of opporiynitied acroes en entity's value chain, eridarserment
sustainabeity-related from the
fimancial infarmation regulatar
IFAS 52 — Climate—related = Thie standsrd csets out the requirements far (dertifdng, L lanuoasy 2004
digcbosures reaturing 2nd dissiosng information about climate-related risks subject to

gnd opportunities that = eeefil to primary users of genecal  endorssment

purpese fimancial repors in maxing - decisions rafating o from the

praviding resources to the antity, regulator

Amendments to A5 21 -
Lack of Exchangzahility

&n entity |5 Impacted by the amendments when it has 3
fransaction or an operation in @ foreign currency that s not
exchangeabie into another currency at @ measurement date for

Annual  periods
beginning oo or
after 1 lanuary

& specified purpose, A currency s exchangeablewhen thereisan 3025 [marhy
ability to obrtaln the other currancy (with 3 normal administrative - adoption 5
delay), and the transaction would take place through a market  avallable]

of exchange rmechanism that creates enforceables rights and
aigations.

3.3  Summary of materal accounting policies

3.3.1 Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated Financial statements incorporate the financial statemenss of the Company and entities
cantralled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achisved wheh the Company (o} has power ouer the
inveatae (b is exposed, o bad rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the investes and [c] has the
ahility bo use its power ta affesty it refurm.

The Group reaisecs whether or not |t controls an investese i facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changesto ane ar more of the three compenants of contrals listed abova.

Consplidation of a subsidiary begins when the company obitains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Company lossas control over the subsidiary, Specifically, Income and expenses of subsidiary aequited or
disposed of durlrg the year are included In the consolldated staterment of income or ather comprahensive
Income from the date the Company gains control until the date in which Compamy ceases to contral the
subsidiany.

Profit er loss and esch companent of ather comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Campany and ta the non-contralling intereses Tatal comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attfibuted ta tha
owners of the Company and ta the non-conirolling interasts even if this results in the nan-contreiling interests
faving a defict balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the corecdidated financizl statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's sccounting polichas.

All ntra-group transactions, balances, revenues and sxpenses are eliminated in full on consolidation,

Changes In the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that da net result In the Group losing cantrol pver
the subsidiaries-ars acoourted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and
the nnn-n:nu'l:llll'ng imterests are sdjusted to reflect the changas i ther relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Ay diffierence between the amount by which the pof-contreling inisoeais gre adjusted and the Tair value of
the considerstion pald or recelved i= recognised directly In eguity and attrisuted to the Compamy's
sharghaldars
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When the Group loses cantrad of & subisidiany, a gzin or Toss resulted from derecognition s recognised in the
statament of income and is calculated 35 the difference bebween:

b, The sggregate of the fair valye of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interast,

B. The carrying amount of the azsets before disposal (including goodwill), and liabllities of the subsidiary and
any non=contraling interests.

Al armourts previoesly recognised in pther comprebensive intomes in felation to that subsidizry are acoounted
fear as #f the Group had direct?y disposed of the related assats o llabilities of the subsidiary. The fair valus of
iy Investment retained in the farmer subsidiary at the date when control is lost is ragarded as the falr value
on Initial recogrition for subsegeent accounting under IFRS 9, when appllcable, the cast on initial recognition
ol an imvestment n an associate g a joint venture,

Whare applicabde, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies of the subsidiary In line with those ol
the Group, The difference i regorting date of the subsidiary and the Group is not more than three months
Ad]stments are made for the effects of significant transactions or events that ecour between that date ane
the date of the Group's consolidated financid statements,

Business combinations

Acguisttions of busmasses combination are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cansideration
transfesred in & busmess combingtion s measured at fair valve, which s caloulated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair valueg of the assete transferred by the Group, labilities Incurred by the Geoup ta the
forrmes owners of the acqulres and the equity interests saued by the Group in exchange for contra of the
acquiras, Acgulsition-ralated costs are generally recognized In the statement of incasme at incirrad

At tha acquisition date, the identifiable asspts acquired and the liahilfties assumed areo recapgnizad at theair Fair
walue, except for deferred tax assets or Habilitles, liabilittes or eguity instruments related to share-based
payrnent arrangements and assets that are classified as befd for sale in which cases they are accounted for in
sccordance viath the related 1ERS,

Goodwill is measured a5 the excess of the sum af the conrsiderabion transferred, the amount of any nan-
contrallirg interests in the acquires, and the fair value of any inberest soquired previoushy over the net-of the
astet goguired of the identifiable assets acgulrad and the Gabilities sssumed a4 at the scguisdtion date, f the
ret af the identifiable asiets acquired and liabilities assumed axceeds tha sum of the considaration transferred,
tho amcunt of sy non-controlling Imtarasts [n the acquiree asd the fafr value of the any interest scouired
:‘.‘n-'E'-'ll:lIJi-l',l. the exceds |s recagnired imrmediately in the consolidated statement of income as gain

Mon-controlling nterests may ba measdrad either at the nan-contralling interests' propartinmrate share of the
recognlzed amownts of the scgulree's Identifiable ret assess oo ab fair vafue af such shase. The choice af
measurement basis is made on a transaction=by=transaction basis.

‘When a business combination i achieved in stages, the Group's previdushy held equity interest in the acguirees
& re-rmpasured to fadr valus a6t the Acquisitian date I_‘th: date when the Group obtains controf] and the rn-s.-.jltmg'
gain or loss, If any, is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Amaunts arlsing from nterests in
the zoquiree prior ko the scquisition date that have previously been recognized inother comprehensheincoma
are reclassifled to the statemant of income where such treatment would be approgeiste if that interest were
disposed of

Goodwiil

Goodwill, arising on an acquisition of subsidiaries, [s carried ak cost as astablished at the dals of acquisitisn al
the business less accurmadated impalrment losses, if any.

Far the purposes of Impairment testing, poodwill s allocated to sach af the Group's cath-generating unity
{or groups of cash-genarating units) thal s expected to berefit from the synergies of tha combination,

A cash-generating unit te which goodwlll has been allocated 13 tested for imgalrment annually, or more
fl’E{[u-Er'lEI'g.' when there S indication that the wnit may be impaired

If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is bess than 1ts carmying amount, the impalrment loss bs
allecated first to raduce the carnying amount of any gaodwill allocated to the cnit and then to tha other assets
af the unlt pre rats based on the carrdng amount of each asset in the wnit

Any Impairment lass for goodwill is recognised directly in the consofidated statement of Income, An impairment
loss repognised for goodwill is not reversed in sublnquent periods
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On disposal of any of the cash-generating unit. the attributable amount of goodwill ic indudad n the
determination of the profit or less on disposal

1.3.2 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consderation towhich the Group expecks to be entitled ina contract with
& eudtarmer and exeludes apmaunts collectad an behalf of third parties. The Graup recognises revenee when it
transfers controd of 3 service to a customer, The Group follows a 5-+tep process:

= ldentifying the contract with & custames

identifying the parformance obligations

Determining the transaction price

Allpeating the transaction price to the parformance obligations

- Recopnising revanue when/fas performance abligatiands) are satisfled

Revenue s recognised either at point In time or over time, when {or-as] the Group satisfies performance
ph|igal;|'|:ﬂl:| h'r |:l'al'u:'l:ver""lr'lgI the prnnﬁ;f.d goods or services Lo its customers,

The Gfoup recogrizes contract liabilties for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performancs
obligathens and reparts these amounts, IF any, as oter llablites |n the condolidated statement of finandal
posttion. Similarly,  the Group satisfled a performance obligation before it receives the consideration, the
Group recognises either a confract asset or receivable, if any, inits consolidated staterment of financial gosition
depending on whether somathing other than the passage of tima is required before the conslderation 5 pue

3.3.3 Non-current assets held for sale

Man-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are meaiured ot the lower of corrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell,

Wan-current pssets and dispasal groups are classified as beld for sale if their carrying a mount will be recovered
through asale transaction rathar than through continuing wse. This condition s regarded as mat anly whan the
sale is highly probabde and the asset |ar dispesal group) is available for immediabe sale in its present conditian

Maragement must be committed b2 the salo which should be expected to qualify for *ecognition asa complated
sale within one year from the date of classification

When the Group s committad toa sabe plan Involuing loss of control of a subsidigry, all of the assats and
Fakilities of thal subsidiary are dassified as held for sale when the oriteria described above are met, regardless
af whether tho Grougr will retain @ non-controlling interast in e former subsidiary after the sala.

When the Group is coremitled to a sale plan in an associate or a portion of an investmant inan associate, the
nyestment, or the portiomn of the investment in the associate, that will be disposed of {5 clessifled 25 held for
sale when the criteria deccribad above are met. The Group then ceases 18 apply the equity methad in relation
tio the postion that b classified a3 held for sale, Any retained portion of an irmvestment in an associate that has
not been classified as assats held for sale continues ta be accounted for using the equity method.

3.3.4 Taxatlon

Kuwait Founaghipn for the Advancement af Soences (KFA5)
The Group calculates the contribution o KFAS at L3 of prafit for the year, in accordance with the modified
caiculation based on the Foundation’s Board of Dérectors resolution, which states that the Board of Birectors’

remuneration and franster ta statutory feserve should be excdluded from profit for the year when datermining
the contribotion,

Zeikerd

Contrizyition to Zaxat is caiculated at 1% of the profit of the Group in accordance with Lew Mo, 46 of 2006 and
the Ministry of Fenance resplution Mo, 552007,

Matianal Labour Seeport Tax FNLET]

The Group cadculates the NLST in accordance with Law Mo, 19 of 2000 ard the Ministry of Finance Resoiutions
Ma. 3 af 2006 at 2 5% of taxable profit for the fEAr .1 per law, tash dividends from fisted cormpeni=s which
are sujected to NLST have been deducted frem the profit for the wear
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3.3.5 Progerty, plant and equlpment

Progerty, plant and egulprient are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairmarnt
lass. Cost of an item of equipmeant comgrises of it acquisitlon costs and all directly attributable costs of bringing
e asset to working condition forits Intendad wee. Depraciation is provided on & stralght-line basis over the
estimated useful llves of the assets as follows:

Years
Hitals' buildings 40
Furnipure and fadures 310
Wehicles 3
Right-od-use= assets 5

‘When assets are sold or ratired. thelr cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and
any gatn or loss resulting from thels disposal is recognised in the consoligated staterment of income.

The carrying amounts of property; plant snd eguipmant are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there s any Indication of impalrment. If any such indication exlsts, the assets are written down o thelr
recoverable amounts and the impalrment loss 5 recognised In the conscfidated statement of Inceme.

Expenditure Imcurred to replace a companent of an ftem of property, plant and equipment that is sccounted
for ceparately, s capitalised and the carrying amoant of the component that |s replaced |s written off. Othar
subsequent pxpenditure &5 capitalised anly when if increases future economic berefits of the related item of
progeerty, plant and egulpreent. Al other expenditure is recognisad In the consalidated statement of income a3
the expensaisincurrad,

An ltem of property, plant and equipment and any signéficant part Initially recognised i darecognisad upon
dizgasat or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal, &ny galn o loss arsing on
deracopnition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net dieposal proceeds ang the carrying
armeunt of the asset)is included [n the consolidated staternent of income when the asset is derecognised.

3.3.6 Inwastment properties

Inwvestment propertles comprise progerties under developrrent and developed praperties that are held to eam
rentals or for capital appracistion or bath, Properties held under 2 leasa are dassfied as imaastment progertes
vihen they are hald to eam rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for sale in the ordinary course
of busiress ar for use in production or adminstrative functlons.

InwastrnEnt proparties are measured Initlally 3t cost, Including transaction costs Transaction costs includa
professional fees for legal sendoes, commissions and other costs to bring the property to the conditon
mecessary for it to be capable of pperating, The carrying amoumt also includes the cost of replacing past of an
exlsting inwastrmant proparty at the time that cost Is incurrad if the recegnition criteria are mat; and excludes
the-costs of day-to-day senvicing of an investmant property

Subsequent to initial recogrition, irvestment properties are stated at fair walle, which refiects market
conditions at the reporting date, Gaing or Iesses arising fram changes in the fair values of imvestment properties
gre included in the profit or loss in the year in which they arise

Transfars arg made $o or from investment properties only whan there is a change in use. For a transfar from
investment pregerty to owner otcugind groperty, the deemed cost for subseouwent acoounting is thie fair value
at the date of transfer. If owner actupied property becomes an investrent property, the Group accoudnts For
such praperty in accardance with the policy itated under property, plant and equipment up ta the date ol
changs im i,

investment properties are da-.re:nge'ni:ﬂd when esther they have besn |:||=.|:||:|s.-:|:| al or when the ipvastmant
propecty 5 pormanantly withdrawn from use and no feture economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The
difference between the net dispozal proteeds and the carmying amount of the investment property would result
in gither gatns or kosses on tha retiremant or dispesal of the investmant proparty. Any gaing or |osses are
r:l;.-e;hgnlm:ﬂ in the consolidated statement of income in the gerod of dererognition.

3.3.7 Impairment of non-fnanclial aisets

Thee Group assesses at each reporting date whether thers (4 an indication that an asset may beimpalred. If any
suth indication exists, ar when annodl Impairment besting fos an ssset 5 required, the Growp estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount, An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's
[CaLIp Fair vakue [egs coard o sell and its vabse B use. Becoverable armount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the assat doed nol generate cash inflows that are fargety Indepengent of thase from othes assets or
Groups of assets. When the carrying amoant of an asset or CEU egesds 15 recoverable amount, the asset is
consldered impairad and iswritten down toits recaverablz amount ar CGL
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in agseesing valua In use, the estimated future cash fiows are discounted ta thelr present value using 3 pre-tax
dicrount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of rmoney and the fisks specific o The
assel, In determining

fair value less costs to sell, an approprizte valuation model 5 wsad. These calculatians are corroborated by
valpaion multiples, quoted share prices for publichy traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indscators:

For asscts excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether thare 15 any
indication that previowshy recognised impairmant lodses may ro longar exist or may have decreased. If such
indlcation exists, the Groop estimates the assets or CGUs recoverable amount. A& previously recognised
impairment logs i reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions ysed to determine the asset's
recoverable amount since the lzst impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is lirmited 5o that the carmylng
armount al the assets does not epceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been detarminad, net of depreciation, had no Impairment loss bean recognced far the asset IR prias years.
Such reversdl s recognided 4 the consolidated statement of income unless the assat & carried at revalusd
amaunt, in which case the raverszal s treated a5 a revaluation norease In other comprehensive incama

3.3.8Leases

Thi Group asseises at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That iz, ff the contract
corveys the Tight to control the use of &ar Identified 2ssat for 4 periad of time in eschange Tor consideraton

Graup o4 o lesses

Thi Group applss & single recogrition and measurement approach for all leases, except for shart-term leases
and leases of low-value assets The Group fecognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and fght-of-uss
assats representing the right touse the underying assets.

Right-of-wie gssets

The Group recognises righi-ol-use assets at the commencement date of the lease [i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for usel. Right-of-uce ascets are meacured ab cost lecs gy secumulated deprecdation and
Imgairrment loscec, and adjusied far any rermeasurement of kaats liabilities, The cost of rght-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease Hakilithes recognised, Inltkal direct costs Incurred, and lease payments made at o
before the commencement date less any lease incantives receivad, Right-of-use assats are deprediated on'a
straight-Hne basls over the lease tesm,

The right-of-use 248818 &re subject to impairment in line with the Group's policy as desoribed  unger
“Impairmant of non-financial assets”.

Lease pfiiities

At the commencement date of the ease, the Group recagnises lease liabilities measured at the present valus
of lease payments to be made aver the lease term. The leasa payments include fised paymants iless any lease
incentheas recevable], variable lease payments that depend on an Index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value grarantees. The lease paymenis also ndude the exercise peice of & purchase aation
reasanably certaln ta be exercléed by the Group and payments of penalties far terminating the lease, if the
tease bizrm reflects exercising the nption to terminate, Yanable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or @ Fate are recognised as expenses in the perlod In which the event or condition that thiggars the payment
aCelrs

Group.os o lessor

Leased In which the Group does not transfes substantiaity all the risks and rewards incidental to cvmarship of
an asset are classified as operating heezes. Rental incame arising |3 accounted for an g straight-line basls over
tha leace terms and [s induded In revenie [n the eansalidsted statement af profit or loss due to s operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating bease are added ta the carrying
amount of the leased assat and recognisad aover the lease term on the same basis as rental income, Contiagent
rents are recognised as revenue in the pariod in which they ars 2armed

3.3.9 Finoncial mstruments

& finenclal Instrament |5 any contract that glves rise Bo 8 financiel asiel of one entity and & fingndal Gabiliby or
equity instrument of another entity.
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Finonclol assets
Initia recagaition and megsurarment

Finanels| sssets are elasilfied, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive Incame (OCI), and fair value thiough peafit of loss. The classification of finandal
assafs at initlzl recognition depends on the financial assel’s contractuad cash flow characteristios and the
Group’s Business model for managing therm. 'With the exception of trade receivables that do not contaln a
significant financing component or for which the Graoup has applied the practical expedient are measurad at
the transaction price determined wnder

IFRS 15,

The Growp's financlzl assets mcludes trade and other recesvables, cash and cash equivatents snd financial assets
at falr value through other cormprebensive incoma,

Lirdier [FRS O, the Group determines the classification of financial assats based on the business mode! it uses
to manapge the financlal zssets ard the contractual eash Mew characterssics of the finandal assats,

Business mode! assessment

The Group determines it5 business model at the level that best reflects how It manages Nirancial 2ssets o
achigve 14 businass objective. The infarmation considered includes:

The stated palicies and objectives for the financial astets and the operation of thase policies in practica;

The ricks that affeet the performance of the business modsel [and the financizl assets held within that Business
madel} and how those risks are managed;

The business model assascenent |3 based an ressonably expected scenatios without taking ‘worat case’ o atreis
ase’ sCenares to account f cash flowas after imitial recagnition ase realised ina way that ls differant from the
Group's original expectations, the Group daes not change the classfication of the remaining financial assets
helt in that business model, but Incorporates gueh information when assessing nawly |:||'|E|na'|;-gd or nawly
purchasad financisl assets going foraard,

Adspssment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principel asd interest [SPPI test)

The Group assesses the contractual terms of finangial assets to.identify whether they mest the P8 test,
'‘Pringpal” for the purpose of this test s defined as the falr valus of the financial agset at initial recognition and
may change aver the life of the financial asset, Interest is defined as considaration for time value of maney
far the credit risk associated with the principal and for other basic lending risks and costs, 35 well as, 3 profit
margin. | gssessing wheather the contractual cash flows are solely peyments of peinclpal and interest, the Grosg
considers whethes the financlal asset containg a contrectual terrm that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows sach that it would not meet this condition.

Subseguent memsusement

The Group has performed an aasessrment of its financial assets, being trade and other recevabies and cash and
cish egulvalents, The Grodp has conchidad that these are held to collect contractual cash fliows and aro
expacted to give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of pringigal and interest. The Group analysed
the contractual cash flow characteristics of those mstruments and cancluded that they meet the critesia for
messurement uwndar the amortized cost method. Accordingly, there is mo change in the classification of thesa
Instrurments,

THe subsequant mazsuremant of trade and othier recehables will be at undiscounted orgingd invaicad amaunt
or the transaction price less any accumulated expected credit losses,

Financtel ssiels carried ot falr valie through other comprehenshve income IFVOC)

Upon initiel repognition, the Group makes an irrevacable-election 1o classify some of (18 equity instru ments as
inwestments at FYSCHIF they meet the definition of equity under 145 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation,
and zre mot held for rading neither nor contingent consideration recognized by the Groug in a3 business
comBination. Such classification is dotermined an an instrument by Instrument basis,

Equity instruments at PYOO initialy recognized at fair walue plus directly attribitable fransaction costs and are
subsequently measured at fair velue, Changes in fair values including foreign exchange companent are
recognised In other comprehensive income and presented in the cumulathve changes in fair valuas as part of
consolidated statement of equity. Cumulative gains and lasses proviously recagnided in ather compe ehensgive
income are transferred to retained earmings on derecognition and are Aot recognised in the consolidatad
staternent al income. DiVidend Income are recognised In the consolicated swtement of income unles they
claarty represent a rocovery of part of tha cost of the irvestment in which case they are recogrised in other
comprehensive incame. Equlty Instruments a1 FVOC) are not subiect to Frpairment assessmeant,
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Berecognition
A financial asset {or, where appliczble a part of a financial asset or part of 3 group of similar financal azears] s
derecopnised when:

- The rights to recaive cash flows from the asset heve expired

= The Group has transferred its rights to recelve sash flaws from the asset or hias aswened an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to 3 third party under a 'pass-through'
arrangement; and eithar {a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the ALEET
ar (b the Group has neither ransferred nor retained substantially 2 the rsks and rewards of the asset
but has transferred control of the asset,

When the Group has transferred its rights to recelve cash flows from an asset or has entered inte 5 pasz-through
Arrangerment, It evaluates If and to what extent it has retained the ricks and rewards of swnarship. When it has
naither transferred nor retalned substantially 2l of the ricks and rewards of the asset nor transferred cantra
of the assat, the asset i recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing involvemant in the ssset, In that
cxse, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transfarred asset and the sssociated Fiability are
maasured on & basis that reflects the rights and obligations thet the Group has retaned Continuing
Invsihvement that takes the form of a guarantes aver the transferred asiet s measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of considerstion that the Grouo could be
required Lo repay

Imgsrinment of finonciol asssts

The Group’s acccunting for impalnrient odzes far financial assets s based an # forward-loaking expected credt
loss {ECL) approach

Derermination of ECL an trode and other recefvobles and cash and cash squivalents

With respect ta trade and other racetvables, the Group has agplied the $mplified approach and has calculates
ECLs based on [fetime expected crodit Iosses zs the simplified approach does not reguire the changss in credit
risk to be tracked. The Group has established a provision matdx that is hazad on the Gralp's histarical credit
Ioss experiance, adjusted for forward-looking factors spacific to the receivabins and the Group's econamic
ervironment.

The management considers a financial asset in default when the contractual payments arg 90 days past due,
Howewar, in certain ceses, the management may akso consider @ financlal asset o be in default when inceenal
er external infermation Indicates that the Group is unlikely to recelve the outstanding centractual amownts in
full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group, A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasanable expectation of recovering the contractual cash Nows

The Group does not determine ECLs on cash and cash equivalents as these are considered to be of low sk and
tha Group does not expect to inour any credit losses on these inatruments,

Flnancial abilities

Initinl recognition and messurement

Financial liabilities are classifiad as financial liabilities at fair value theough profit or |64, loans and barrawings,
&5 appragriate. The Group determines the classfication of its financial liabilities 2t initial recognition,

Financial liabilities are recognised infiadly at fRirvalue znd In the cage of loans and borrewings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs,

The Group's financial liabikties Include loans and bank faciiities, and trade and other payablas.,

Subsequent measurenent

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on thelr dassification a5 described below:

doang and baak faciities

After Initial recognition, loans and bank faciities are subsequently measured a1 amartised cast using the

effective interest rate (EIR] method. Gains or |osses are recagnised in the consalidatad statemant of incams
when the liabilities are derecognisad at wall as through £1R amortisation procass,

Amartised east ik calculated by taking inte account any discaunt or premium on gequisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amoriisation s intluded in finznce casts in the consolidstad
staterment of income.
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Trade gid orher poyables

Liabifities are recognised for amownts to be paid in the futwre for goods or services received, whether illed by
the supplier o not.

Oerecognition
Afinancial liability is derectgnizad when the cbligation undar the Eabiity 15 dischaspad ar eancelled o expired,

Where an edisting financial liabilty is replaced by another from the same lender on substastially different
tarme, or the tarms of an axdsting liability ara cubstantially modified, sech an axchange or modiieatisn 1s treated
35 & darecognition of tha original liability and the recegnition of 8 new lahifity and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised inthe consolidated staterrent of incoma.

Offsetting of financial Instruments

Financlal assets and financial liakdlites are affiet and the et amount reported n the consoldated statement
of financial position i, and only [f, there s a currently enforceabla logal right to affsel the recognised amounts
and there |s ap Intantion 1o 4sttle an anet basls, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneoushy,

3.2.10 Invedtment I/ an asiaciate

An aigaciate s an entity over which the Group has signifcant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate i the financisl and ossrating policy decisions of the investes, but ts not control or joént control owsr
these palicies. The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similas to those
necassary to datarrming contral over subsidiaries,

Ivestment (n an asoans is aceounted for using the aquity method. Under the eguity method, the investment
in an associate i Initiedly recognised at east. The carmying amount of tha investmens in the corsolidated
staterment of financial praftion s adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of net assems of the
Associate sinde the acquisition date, Goodwill relating to the assaciate |5 included in the carrying armount of the
imnestment and i neither amortised nae individually tested for impairment, The consalidated statement of
income reflacts the Group's share af the resulis aof the associate’s operatinng, Wharg thare ks 3 chinae

recognised directly in the ather comprehensive income of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any
changes and discioses this, when applicabla, in the consolidated statament of comprehensive income. In
addition, when there i3 0 change recagnised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its
share af any changes, when applicable, in the consolidgated staternent of changes in. equity. Unrealised gains
and lpsses Fesulting from transactions between the Group and the associzte arg eliminated to the axtant of the
int=rest in the assosints,

The Group's share of profit or ks of an sssociate s shown en the face of the consolidated statement of Income
outside oparating profit and represents profit or loss after 1 and non-cantrolling interests in the subsidiaries
af the assaciate.

Tha financial statements of the associate are prepared Tor the sarme reporting period as the Group and in case
of different reporting date of associate, which are net more than threa monghs, from the date of the Groug's
consplidated financial staternents, adjustments are made for the effects of significant fransactions or events
that oceur berween that date and the date of the Group's consolidated financial statermants. Whean nECessany,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

Upon kss of significant infiuence ower the assoclate, the Group rmeasures and fecognises any retained
investrrent atits fair value, Any difference betwaen the carrying asmount of tho associste wpon loss of significant
influsnce and the fair value of the retained investment and procesds fram disposal is recognised in the
consolidated staterment of income

3.3.11 Cash and cash eguivalents
Far the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash Nows, cash and cash eguivalents consist of cash en hand,
bank balances, cash in investment portfolios and bank doposits.

131 Employees” end of service benefits

The Growp provides end of service benefits to all ks emplayees. The entittement 1o these benafibsis based upon
the emplayees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of & minimuem serelce perlod. The
aupacted costs of these benefits are accrued over the perod of employmeant.

Further, with respect ta its natlanal employees, the Group alio makes contributions to Public Authonty for
Social Security calculated a8 a percentage of the ernplovess’ salaries, The Groun’s obligations are Bmited to
these contributions, which are expensed when dus
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3.3.13 Prowishons
Provisions arg secognised when tha Sroup has a presant chligation {lggal ar constructive) as @ reswls of @ past
event, It Is probable that an outfiow of resourdes embodying econormic Benafits will ba required to seitle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

33,14 Treasury shares

Treasury shires represent the Parent Comgany’s own shares that have been issued, subsequently purchased
by the Group and not yat reisseed oreancelled tifl the date of the contalidated inancial statements. Treasury
shares are pecaunted for using the east method, Under the cost method, the total cost of the shares is reported
25 @ contra accaount within equity when the treasury shares are dizpoied; gaing are eredited to a separate un-
distributable sccsunt in eguity "treasury shares feserva”, Any realised losses are charged to the sarme account
in thie lirmit of its credit balance, ary sdditonal besses are charged to retained sarmings to reserves and then to
premium. Gaing realised subsequently on the sale of treasury shares are first used to offsat any previously
recorded losses in rieserves, retained eemings and the gein on sabe of treasury shares,

3.3.15 Forelpn currenches translathon

The consolidated financial statements ane prasented In Kuwwaltl Dinars, which s the Farent Company's
functional and presentation currency. Each antity In the Group determines its own functional curmancy and
items included in the financial statements of each entity-are measured using that functional cusrency,
Transoctions ond belonces

Transacoons in forelgn currencies areinitially recorded by the Growp's entities at thelr respective functional
Currency spat rates ak the date the transaction first gualifies for recognition,

kA onetary assets and liabliitles denoeminated in forelgn currencies are retranslated at the functiona! currenoy

spot rate of axchange ruling at the reporting date. All differences are taken to the consofdated s1atement al
Incomse

Mon-rmonetary items that afe measered in terms of histonical cost in @ foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the intial transactions. Mon-monetany Items measured at fair value in & forsign
curreney are translated uiing the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Any poadwill
arising on the acquisition of a forelgn operation and amy fair walue adjustments fo the carrying amounts of
assets end liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and lizbilives of the forelgn operations and
translated at closing rate

Group cormsanies

As at the reporting date, the assets and labilittes of foreign subsidiaries, and the carrying amount of foraign
asgaciate are trantlated Into the Parent Company's presentation currency [the Buwaitl Dinars] at the rate of
ekchange ruling at the réporting date, and their statement of income are translated at the welghted average
exchange rates far the year. Exchange diffetences arising on Eranslation are taken to the consolidated
statement of comprehansive incame &5 foreign exchange translation reserve within eguty, On disposal of 3
foreign entity, the delerred cumetative amount recognised in eguity relating to the particelar forelgn operation
is recognised im the consolidated statement of income:

3316 Finance cosis

Finance costs diescthy attrizutable to the sequBsition, construetion, or production of gualifying assets, which are
actats that mecassarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalited as part of the coit of those assets; unfil such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
imtendad Wse or sale. All okher finance costs are recognised as expanses in the pericd tn which they are ncurred,

1.3.17 Contingencias

Contingent liabdities are nat recognised in the consplidated statement of financial position, but are disciosed
unbess the passibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic banefits & remote

Cantingent assais are nat recu-gnls&d In the consolidated statement of financil position, but are disdesed
when an Inflow of economic benefits is probeble
3.3.18 Segment information

A segment i @ distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in praviding praducts or sardices
business segment], or in providing products and services within a particular economic environment, which s
sulopect to risks and rewards that are different from those of sther sogments

i3
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3.4

Significent accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements require management to make judgrnenti, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, edpendad, ssists and liabilites and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. Howewer, uncertainty about the assemptions and
estimates could result in'outcomes that regere a material adjestment to the amount of the ssset or llabdity
affected in future periods

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sburces of estimation uncertainty at the reparting

date, that have o significant risk of eausing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discutsed below:

Useful ves of property. plant ond equipment

The manragement deterrmings the estimated useful ves of It property, plant and eguipment for cakoulating
depreciation. This astimate |s determined alter considering the expected usage of the asset or physical wear
ard tear. Management reviews the residual value and wseful Bves annually and future depreciation charge
wolid be adjusted where the management belisves the useful lives differ fram previous estimates,

Falr value measurement ond valugtion techrigues

Cortain assets and libilities of the Group are measured at fair value for preparing the cordalidatsd flrencial
statements, The Group's management determines the appropriate key mathods and inputs ragulsed for the
Fair valug's measuremant. Upon determining the fzir value of assets and liakilities, the managarment uses a-
obsenvable market fata. In case no market ocbservabde data ls avallable, the Group shall essign an skterns
qualified valver to carry out tha valuation process. Information about the evaluation methads and necesseey
inputs, which are used to determine the fair value of assets and lizbillitias, has besn disclased n Mate 5 and
Meta 27,

Expected creatt loss (ECL) measurement

The Group always racognizes |ifetime ECL for trade recelvables which generally da nat hive a sigrificanst
financing compenens, The exgeched credit losses on these financla! assets are astimated using & provisian
miairiz based on the Group's Ristorkcal credit loss experlence, adpusted for factoes that are specific to the
debtors. general econamic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well a5 the feredast directon
of conditions at the reporting date. Including time value of money where sopropriate, Lifstime ECL represents
the axpectied credit losses that will result from 8l possible default avents aver the expeectad life aof & trade
recaivablas,

The Group recognises @ loss aflowance for expected credit losses on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost, The amount of expected cradit 'osses I updated at each reporting date Note 8 shows the
‘mpact of this gn the-consolidated financial statements of the Growp.

Judpemeant

In the process of applying the Group's accaunting polledes, manggement has made the fallpwing judgments,
wiich have the most significant effect on the amounts racogniad in the consolideted financal statemants:

Properties clesslficotion

Management takes the decisian on the aoquisition of property whether |t should be chssified as heid for
trading, property under development or Investment property. Such pravisiend on acgeisition will determine
later whether theze properties will be measured subseguently at the lowes of cost less impairmant, at cost or
realizable valus, or at fair value, and whether chonges in the fair walue of these propertie: will be recorded in
the contalidated staterments of incame or other comprebensive incoma.
The Group classifies the properties a5 fofaws:
- Property held for trading: it s acquirad principaly far sale in the erdinary business activity.
Property under development: IF 1 15 acquired with the intentlen of develsprmient.
- Inuvestmant property: if it is acguired for rental income, for capital appreciation, af for undetermined futura
use,

Clessificotion of fnvestrmpents

Clazsification of investments is based an management’s intention at acquisition and requires considerakle
Judgment.
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Contingent lnkilitiesdichifties

Cantingent Eabilities arise as a result of past events confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrenca of ona
or mare af uncertain futere events not fully within the contrel of the Group, Prowisions for lizkilities are
racordad when a loss s condidered probable and can be reasonably estimated. The determination of whether
ornot a provision should be recorded for any petential liabilities is based on management's [udgment,

4 PROFERTY, PLANT AND EGLIPFMENT

Hoteal Hatel Furniture  Vehlcles  Right-af- Tatal
ands buildings and UGE B35ets
fismtures

As at 1 Jameary 2022 2,638.460 18,991,187 2,235407 101,245 119,927 34,188,121
additions 2 = 228,709 16,064 244 773
A5 3t 31 December F022 1,635 460 18,591 187 1465111 117309 II8.8527 34,447 954
Additions : - 333,051 - - 333,051
Disposals - - - {220927)  [229,927)
As a1 31 December 2023 gﬁfﬂllﬁl EIHLIB’? %E?ﬂllﬂ 117,309 14,546,118
Depraciation and
impairment:
As at L January 2022 661,540 16,800,768  1,335.829 101,244 110,705 19,010,086
Oepreciation - A54, 108 207,645 1,264 34,064 E97 85
A5 at 31 December 2023 G61.540 2 i7.X54.876 2 1.543.4T4 103,512 144769 19707171
Oepreciation = 452108 20B577 5,301 25,545 £33, 135
Disposals - - - - {170, 31E] (27 318)
As at 31 December 2023 661,540 17,708,984 1,751,651 107,813 - I0,229.988
Net book vakee:
As at 31 December 2023 1,877,920 11,282,203 1,046,511 9,496 - 14,316,130
As at 31 December 2022 1,977,920 11,736,311 521,637 14,757 B5,158 14,735 823

Hotel Lafds and Bulleings with & net carsfing value af KD 13,260,123 a5 of 31 Decernber 2023 (KD 13,714,231

as at 3 December II]II:I are |:||EI'5E_1.'.I:| against loant and bank facilities (Mote 'I.S].

5 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

311 December 31 December

s 0%
Propertios inside Kuwait 13,340,800 4,020,000
Properties outside Kuvwalt 15,161,398 35,554,584
31461,3538 109,574,582

Movement on iInvestment properties are as follows: -

073 Iz
Balance as of 1 January 109,574 582 106,332, 647
Dispozals (18 555,002) (685 345)
Urrealized galr frorm valustion 1,846,510 1,486,780
Forgign currency translation 6 378 A4 S04
Balarnce as at 31 Decamber 51461338 10 574 5837

- |nvestment properties ameanting 1o KD 73.300,000 (2027 kD B2,858,513) are pledged agaimd losns and

bank facilities granted to the Group (Nate 15),

During the current wear, Imdastment propartios outside of Kuwait hes baen spld with a carying value of

KD 17 476,002 (KD 683,349 as at 31 December 2022) which resvlted in gaim from sale amounted to
KDL LRG0 EET (KD 176,509 as at 31 Decembor 2022, Recefvable recorded from such sales amaunt to

KD 3,581,018 as at 31 December 2023 (Nl as at 31 December 2022,
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During the aurrent year, the Group had signed initial agresments to sell properties outside of Kuwai with 2
carmying value amounted to KO 1,403 433 (KD 2,161,747 as at 31 December 2022 ) accordingly advance
amounted 1o KO 417803 has been collected and recorded as payable as of 31 Dee F033
(KD 2,161,747 as a1 31 December 2032]. [Mote 16], the sales of such proparties is expaciad 13 be recogrizid
wpon the satisfaction of the perfermance obiigation and the buyer obtain control over the properties

During the current year bocal property has been sold with carrying vakee of KD 1.520,000 and gain from sale
with ar amaourl KD 230,000 has been recognized in the consalidated statemant of incorme for the yaar ended
31 Decamber 2023

The fair value of investment properties located in Kuwait of KD 73,300,000 as of 31 December 2023 (2022-
KD 74,030,000] has been determined bazed an valuations obtalned frem two professional real estate valuers,
who are specizlized In valulng such type of investment progerties. One of these valuers |s 3 local bank snd
the other is a local reputable aceredited valuer, For accounting purpese, the Groep has selected the lower of
these two valuations as reguired by the Capital Markets Autharity (CMA), The valuers have used income
tapitalization approach, which is used for valuating developed properties ganerating rental ncorme assUming
full capacity of the proparty,

The fair value of investment properties located outside Kuwait amounting to KD 19,163,388 as at
31 Decernber 3023 (KD 35,554,582 25 at 31 December 2022] haz bapn determined based on valuation
performed by am independent expert, The valuer used the market camparable approsch, Under the marks:
camparable aparoach, a property fair value s estimated based on comparabde transactions, The market
comparabie approach Is based upon the principal substitution under which a patential Duyar will mot oay
more for the property than it will cost to buy comparable substitute praperty, The unit of comparisen apalied
oy the Grougp s the price per sguare meter,

The following & falr value hierarchy disclosures for dlasses of investment properties |5 as at 31 December

Fair walue measurement using

Qurated prices in Eignificant Total
active markets m unpbservehi
flevel 1) inBLits £ inpuis
{Level 2] flevel 3)
2023 - 19,161,398 13,300,000 02 461 398
1033 " A5 554 582 14,000,000 1005, 574,582

During 2023, ther were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value messurementsand no transfer into
and ouk of lewel 3 fair valoe measuramsanis.

The mevement in Leve! 3 fair value hierarchy during the year is given below:

2023 2022
Balance as at 1 fanuary 74,030,000 70,810,000
Disposal 11,520,000 a
Change in Fair value 800,000 3,210,000
Balanoe ag al 31 JHEB'THI:I‘EF ?3.3[“:'.”[':' ?grmuluu.n

The significant assimptiong used in the valuatians e set out bielow:
31 December 11 December

f0d3 2022
Average monthly rent (per sqm) (KD} 12,29 12.02
Capitalization rate T22% 7.245%
Decupancy rate 100% 100
Sensitivity analysis
The table below presénts the sensitivity of the valustion to changes in the most significant assumptions
undarlying the valuation of the investment properties.
Changes In 51 December 31 December
valuation 2023 022
_assumptions == ———
Average rent +/- 5% 3,658,383 3,625, D
Capitalization rate +f- 5% 3,490 437 3,524,762
Qccupaney rate - 5% 3,554,959) {3,701,000)

F
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B INVESTMEMT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Percentage of 31 31 Decembser i lanuary
Ownership (W) Decernber 202 2031
2073 [Restated — [Restated -
_Noteds) ~— Noteld)
Sharm Oreams for Real Estate 17.90%
Davelepment Company (5.AE] ; 439,250 66,704 B4E.G14
Fallowing & the mavement af the investrment in an associate:
31 December 21 December
1023 2022
|Restatad -
= Mote 28)
Balanes ac at 1 lanuary {25 previausly stated)
PFriar yearss restataments |Note 28] ShETEL _ B4B5iY
Bsfance as at 1 lanuary (Restated) 566, T84 B4R, 514
Foraign currency transiation differances {116,534| {281,730
Group's share of resolt 411,000} =
Balanca as at 31 December 430,750 S66, 784

During 2021, the Group signed a contract to sall the full stake 21.6% af investment in the associate, The cantract
has to be sxecuted in phases, accordingly the Group transferred investment in assoclate balance to assets nald
for sale. Foreign currancy translation reserve related to this imestment smounting bo KO 1,337 70E hay been
presefled separsbsly din Sguity a8 per requirements of IFRSS Subsequently, and during 3031
a staxeof 3.8 % has boen transfarred 1o tha buyer and the remaining share cortinug in the namae of the group
Since tha puyer did net comenit to transteering the full sale considaration in accorgdance with the sgle contract,
the group did not transfer the ownerchip title deed of the remaining stakeés to the buyer. Therefore, [T was
decided b teavs the implementation of the confract. Accordingly, the group ceased applying the requirement
of IFRS 5 -for fuch investment, accoedingly the group accounted for such investment using the eguity method
retrospectivity (Mote 28 ).

The graup belbave that the group stifl has significant influence sver the associate taking into condideration that
the group has reprasentation In the board of directors’ of the associate,

Share of asscocate is unguoted a5 of 21 Decernber 2023 and 2023,

Share of resolt from associate has been recorded based on The associate management account as of
31 December 2023 (audited financial staternent for the year ended 31 December 2022 )

Following is the mavement of the aszet classifled as held for sala -

31 December 31 December 1 january
2023 2022 2022
{Restated)
Opening balance [As previously restated ) B458.514 B4E.514 248514
Prior years restabament {848,514} {848,534 (B4R.514)

Erding balance |Restated | : 3

T FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME

2023 2022
Quoted shares 7,636 601 T B yod 481
Unguoted shares LI__*_}";I_,:'.S? 1-_2 75,359
R340, 158 5,579,850

- T bafance reprasen o shaned fn ather eompaniet whoss actlvitiet are not similar to the Parent Company's
activities amaunting to KD 8,836,158 (2022: KD 8,579,850)

- Financial assets at fair velue through other comprehensive income amounting to KD 5,961,580[2022;
KD 6,794,755 ) are pladged againgt inans snd bank facilitias (Mate 15)

= Certain financial 2ssats at fair value through other comprehenswe incoma amounting o KB 36, 704 (2023,

ED 46,188} are registered in the name of nominee on behalf of the Group, The nominees have canfirmed In
writing that the Group £ the beneficial owner of the Investmonts

i3
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Moen-Current
Becelvables fram sedling investment proprieties

CEFPEnt

Campensation receable

Trade Recelvables

Receivalbies frcem selling invastmient proprieties {Mote 5
Adwance payment for purchasing of mvestmant properties
ket assets of unconsolidatied hotel

Prepaid expenses

advance EEyTTHEN 1S 1o contrackors

staff receluables

Dise from related parties {Mote 23]

Cither

Experted credlt losses [other than compensation receivables|

Folfowing s the movement in provislon for expected eredit losses:

Balaner ot of 1 January
prowided [[Raversal) for the year
Balance as at 31 Dacem bar

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash an Rrand
Bank balances
Fixed daposits

SHARE CAPITAL

e 2022
_ 1197.85%

10,057,080 10,057,080
1,610,521 LA473.774
2,383,165 :

E26,545 E26, 545
38,154 08,104
B5 264 38,609
114,832 98,025
6,759 4,559
8,002 497,352

f34.535 623,912
15,675,357 13,728,140
_ |12,3534811 [12.065965]
3 6221655 LE61, 175
4,820.019 1,661,175

2023 2022
12,065,965 12,091,234
186,225 (24,268
12,753,191 12,066,955
2023 2022

14,035 14,030

4487 FH 12932717

1 582 B&0 415,930

2,039,115 1,733,237

During the current year the parent company extraardingry general aisembly meeting had bees hald on 19 April
2023 and approved reduction of autharized, ssued and paid wp capital frem KD 50,084 499 distributed over
509,842 986 thares of 100 Fills to KD 36,520,973 gistributed ower 365,209,730 shares of 100 fills each (note 29).
This redusction has been ragistered on commercial reglster on 4 May 2023

TREASURY SHARES

Mumber of shares {share}

Cast af treasury shapas (KD}
Parcaptags toissued shares (%)
Sdarket value

Reserdes equivalent o the cost of the treasury shares held are not avallable for distribution.

41 December 31 December
023 2022
B.625,273 4,619.962
825,786 714,734
1.7Q 093
445,718 115,499

During the current year, treasury shares number of 1,2 70, 802 sheres decreased due to the decrease of capital

[mote 2S).

24
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STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with the Companies” Law, and the Parent Company's Memorandurm of Incorporation and feticles
of Association, 3 minimum of 10% of the profit for the year befora cantribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and board
af directors’ remuneration 2hall be fransferred (o the statetory resere based on the recommendation of the
Parent Company™s board of directors. The annual general assembly of the Parent Company may resolve
discontinua such transfer when the reserve axceeds 50% of the tssued share capital, The reserve may anly be
used 1o offset losses or enable the gayment of a dividensd up 19 5% of paad-up share capital in years when profit
is net sufficient for the payment of swuch - dividerd due to absence of distributable reserves. Ary amounts
degucted from the reserve shall be refunded when the prafits inthe folowing years suffice, unless such reserva
expends 50% of the kaed share capital,

VOLUNTARY RESERVE

i accardamee with the Campanias’ Law, and the Perent Company’s Memaorandum of incorporstion and Artcles
of Association, a maximum of 10% of the profit for the vear bafore contribution to KFAS, MLST, Zakat and board
of directory’ rermunersation s required to be transterred to the woluntary reserve. Such annual transhers may be
discontimeed by a resolution of the shareholders' general assembly upon a recommendation by the Scard of
Directors: There are mo restrictlons on the distribution of this reserve. The board of divector of the parent
company has been held on 24 March 2024 and prapoie no transler to tha wveluntary resere,

OTHER RESERVES
Treasury Cumulative  Foreign Total
shares change in EUFFEBCY
TRSEIVE fair valugs  translation
fELErE rEseruE
Balence as at 1 Jan 2022 (As previousty srated) 1,09E,372 499,786 330.EES 1937823
Pricr years restaterment - = 1,351 804 !1. 351 998"
Balance as at 1 January 2022 (Restatad) 1,098,372 499,786 §1,011.333) 585,825
Change [n falr value of financlal ageets at fair valus
through other compreheansive income - 77,200 - 12,200
Forelgn currency translation - - 63,546 63,546
Cther comprehensive income for the year - 77,200 63,546 140746
Balance as at 21 December 2022 1098372 576,936 (948 78T} 7254571
Balance as at 1 January 2023 (A previously stated) 1,088 372 576,926 e84 841 1,360,298
Prior year restatements (Maka 23 ) e, 11,633,728}  (1,633,728)
Balanca as at 1 January 2073 |Restated | 1,098,372 E76. 536 [948,787) 726,571
Change in fais value of finencal assets at fair vaiue
through other comprehensive income - [2,207.030) - {3.207.030)
Foreiga currency Dramdfatian - - [19.2.99'.":! If!glrg"g?'l
Other Comprehensive loss for the pear (2,207 030) (192997 (2.4000027)
Sake of treasury shares |54,427) . : 154.427]
Balance a4 at 31 December 2023 1,043,945 (1,630,004] [1.141,784) l{l.i‘l?,ﬂ-ﬂi'l
LOAMS AND BANK FACILITIES
2023 2022
Lirrent Portion
Bank cvsrdraft 237 989 420,578
Laan from a commercial Bank i Kuwait B3 987,723 25,924, 500
Lman fram local eampaey in- Kowait 339 733 334514
Loan from a UAE Bank [dise| 11,160,565 11015 592
Lopn fram a UAE Bank e e . - ,_11_5;_"2_
__BLIS510 39113411
Loan from a commearcial bank In Kuwait - 47,503,000
Loan from a UAE Bank - __ B036554
= 53,536,554
EL 723510 97 GdR 965
5
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Diuring the current year, the group defaulted in the payment of the Inan instaliment ameunt to KD 20.1 million 3
Wuwaiti bank, necording to the eross-default tarm to the loan agreement the entire ipan balance with an amowt of
KD 70,099,583 hay become past due. Subseguent to the financial statemant date, the Group has dgnad reschedide
agraement with the bank’ According to this agreement the group has to pay the loan during 2 period of three years,
Laans include acorued finance cost of KO0 L 546 166 a5 of 31 Decamber 2023 (KO 3,440 263 as af 31 Dacember
J0E2),

During pravious years, loan instabments snd relsted Bnence costs of a UAE bank were past due and unpaid. The bank
fied & legal case against the Parent Company during the vear ended 31 December 2012 During the fourth quarter
of 2019, Sharjah Court Issued the appeal judgement which abligate the Group ta pay an amount of AED 115 Milion
(approsimatehy KO 9.7 WElicn a5 at 31 December 20043} and transfer the e deed of the hotel tothe baik, in addition
to payrment of legal interest of 5% per annum Trom the date of the laesuit was fled till settement date, The Group
recogrezed legal interests due for the perod from the date of the lawsuit was filed ©ll 31 Dacember 2023, by
approulmatedsy KD 1e Million as &t 31 Decesnber 2023 |KD 1.4 milfon 35 of 31 December 2022] and tha hotel titha
deed was trarsferced to the bank during prior yvears,

Subsaguent ta the financial statement date, The group hes signed settlerment agresment with the bank, sccording
o suwth agreement, the group haz to pay an amount of &E0 75 Million eguevalent to KD 6,248,130 dusng @ period
af 40 days from tha agreement date and stcording to terms of such agreement the graup will be watved from paying
AEDA0 2 Million eguvalent 1o KD & 903,026 Upan complying with all the settlement agreement,

loan ameunting to KD 230,233 a3 at 3L December 2023 31 December J022: KD 334 _524) were obtaired from
& lacal Company which Is a related party {Mote 23]

During the current year, the group settled in full a Ioan granted from UAE bank by KD £,832,232
Loans are granted to the Group against pledge of the following assots:

223 2022
Pragerty, plant and aqulpment (Note 4) 13,260,133 13,714,231
Imvestment praperties (Mote 5] TE,E300,000 837858519
Fimancial assets at fair value throuegh other comprenensive income [Maka 7) 5,961 580 B, 794,755

92,521,703 103,367,400

THADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2023 208
Advances fram sale of investment property (Mote 51° 417803 2,161,747
Prawlsion for elairms®® 64,393 1,172,854
Frade payables BE58,237 466072
Due to related parties (Mote 23) 30,664 &04,579
Dividends payables*** 303 857
Acerued expenses and leaves 329,843 olB.329
Refundable depasits Ll God 8281001
Customer advance payments 10568 517 E49
Lease llabikties 288 148 154,185
Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Scence B Th 55470
Mational Labor Support Tax 47 (0 a0,037
lahat payable 31,668 24 ERT
Other payasies 182,199 384,363

3,733 04 g;_zi T30
* The Growp callected an amount of KIr 417,803 as advance as a1 31 December 3023 (KD 3,161,747 a= at
31 December 2022] from selling investment properties outiide Kuwait (note 5),

**Provision of clalms amounted fo KD 1,037,394 wis reversed dusing the eurrent year, teken into consideration
logal eondultant apinion.

== *During the current year, the Management of the Parent Company wrote off dhvidends payabie ta previous
iharehoiders amodnting to KO'993,957 in the Consalidated Statemant of Income due to abandaon Ing_ of the ri;hl:
to clabm thereaf based on advice of the Group's axtemal legal consultant

2
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INVESTMENT INCOME
i w2
Dividends incame 133,557 138 38R
Gain on sabe rights lssue - 58,132 =
X311 BB 138 386
OTHER INCORE
023 2022
Closed dividends payable [Mote 16) Q53,557 -
Qthar income 331,308 186,431
1,315 165 LIRS 431
STAFF COSTS
2023 2022
Salaries, wages and Donses 266,571 215,473
End af serfvics benefits and leavas 88378 55,5971
hers 147 T 256
356,641 ZEZ 700
OTHER EXPENSES
2023 -
Water and shactricity 450,305 434,303
Professionad fees and consulting 60473 T3E.539
Lagal expenses 24 IE2 BE 755
Insurance E454 7150
Maintesnance 160,155 A45.321
Subscriptions Th.B15 70,5244
Others 185,823 433,157
1,173,187 LE78.310
BASIC AND NLUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Baslc parnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted averags number of
ardinary shares outitanding during the yasr {exclueding treasury shares). Dilubed earnings per shara b caloulated
by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares gutstanding during the
wear (encluding trapsury shares] plus the weighted avarage number of ordinary shares that would be Baued on
the conversion of all the dilutive potential ardinary shares into ordinary stares, The Parent Company did not
haye gy diluted shares &5 at 31 December 2023,

The information necessary to calcutate basic and diluted earnings per share based on the wesghted average
number of shares sutstanding, less treasury shares, during the yesr 4 a4 follows:

2023 2012
Praofit for the yesr (KQ) 2,766,4870 2,060,575
Weighted average numbser of ordinarny outstanding shares |share) 365,170,830 365,860,570
Brofit pershare {Fils) - 758 5.63

25 there are no dil uthe Bsrements outstanding, basic and dituted garrtings per share ane sdentical.

The garning per share for current and pervious year was adjustad 2king in to consideration the axtraordinary
genieral assembly decision ta degrease the issued and paid up capital to amortize 1o accurmulated loss [note 29}

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information regarding the Growp's operating segments is set 0wt below in saccordanoe with FRS 8 "Operating
EEEI'HE'HI:S"'. IFRS B requires operating segments 1o be identiffed on the basis of inlermal reports about
compenents of the Group that are regulasly reviewed by the “Executive manegemsnt” who ere the Chiel
Operating decition-makers in order to allotate rescurces to the segment and to assess s performance. The
Graup CEQ i identified as a chiol oparating decislon maker far the Groun

i
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e management af the Group assessed the Group into three key business units; real estate commercial
activitios sueh 2z purchase and sale of lands and properties and Investing them and acquiriig and rmanaging
hotels and its toursm activities. These businzsses are the besis on which the Group reports its primary segment
information to the chief operating decivion maker for the purgose of resource. glocation and assecoment af
segment parfor mance.
The activitied segrments of the Graug, which are presented to the management, are regresanted in the
fallowing:
Real estate segment: which represents all activitios related to real estate Inc uwding Investment pragerties.
Hotels segment; which regresants all activities related to establishement, scquiring and mansging hotels,
Inwestment segment: which represents all acthities related to irvasting in shares and share capital of the
companies.
The abowe segmants are the basis on which the Growp reports its segment infermatian. Transactions between
segrments are conducked at estimated market rates onan arm’s lengéh basis and eliminated on consolidation

The following tabie presents the Information about met revenues, costs, (loss) prafits, ascets and labilities for
each segment:

FiiFE]
Real astate Hotels inueitrment  Unallocated Total
segment Segment Segment Ptems
Ravanugs a35, 71 A5ES.862 431 689 1,304,155 131 733 428
Ciosts (B827,85E) |4, 3120, 769 - [B16,908) [5,765,535)
Finance casts 4,894, 7ES) - (312,434) s {5,200, 833}
Met profit / (loss} 1,913,065 447, 053 (B3,745) 487 257 1 TES ETO
Arsety 92 451 308 14,058,420 9,275,408 7115 EB88 132512070
Lrahilrties 54,125,508 13.4345.011 4, 2054975 1,014, 05 B&, 773 0946
2032 [Restated - Mote 18]
Real estate Hotels frvestment  Unallogated Total
sepment Segment Segment items
Apraniuas 8,501,206 4,514,597 1IE ARG 1B£. 431 13,330,620
Costs {820,240}  [4,231,B15) . (2,132,349)  (7,184,408)
Fingnoe cosls {_3.7"?'3.5'35:' e Hﬁrliﬁ] = (4,065,649 1:'
et profit) (lass) 3,910,461 2E2,TE2 (1B6,750] (1,245 518 2060575
Assels 109,574 582 15,436,672 10,546,634 4,683 563 135.14@
Liabilities 81,968,193 12,363,956 4, 025.422 4 931,081 101,308 591
Geographical distribution of revenues and assets is:
2023 2022

Ty —— (Restated ~ fote 26)

Revenues Aty Revenurs Axzots
Sratis of Kuwait 92117672 87, 732,187 11,537 542 % 13|, 084
United Arab Emirates 1,511, 758 24,690,633 1,992 978 A6, 7Y
Arab Republic of Egypt - 439,25 - 3,147,633
13730428 122012070 13,330,620 138241 451

231  TRAMNSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Thesa represent transactions with certain parties {major shareholders, gdirectors and executive officers of tha
Froup, close members of their farmilies ard entities of which they are grincipal owners or over which they are
abde 1o exercise gignificant mffuenoa] entered inte by the Group in the ardinary course of business. Fricing
polickes and terms of these transections are approved by the Group's mansgement, and board of direciors



MM NEEN N R E

Al-Arabiya Real Estate Company K.5.CF. . -_’-_l'|
#nd its subsidiaries S o
Liate of Kuwait =g

MNokes to the Consalidated Financlal Statements for the year anded 31 Decembar 200132

{0 armourts oo i Kol Dinay dniess cfhenaise stated)

FL

25

Thie Fallewing i5 The statement of such transactions and balances:

20Z3 20232
Trgnsoctions
Flnamce costs 4,000 4,000
Marketing contrisution - included in expenses of hotel 3a,41L 35,241
Reservation contdbution - Ineluded in eapenses of hotel 18,206 17,621
Rovalty Fees - Included In expenses of hotel 6,804 14,002
Consultation fee - included in expenses of hatel 42,000 42 000
General and adminkstrative expense - Included in expenses of hotel 24,100 19,211
Holidex fees - Included in expanses of hotel 13877 13 158
Commission sxpenses 23,182 32,854
Assets management fees 182,714 5,405
Rertal incormse a0 53,971

Balances with related parties Included in the consclidated statement of financial positon are 2= follows:

2023 2022

Berlonces
Due fram related parties [Note & 63,002 497 352
Due to related partles (Mote 16} * 30,664 504,574
Loans and facilifies {(Note 15) 339,233 334.524

* Duwe from: related parties includes an smount due from Uhtimate Parent Cosnpany KD 552,758 (2023:
K493 BT} 'which carries an interest of Nl

Compensation of key management personnal
The remunaration of members of key managerment during tha year wera as follows:

023 021
Esiaries and remunerations 216,000 152,000
Emplayees’ and of service benefits 3,462 3,462
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITBMEMTS
Contingant liabifithes

2023 2022
Lettars of Guarantes 45 138 24 501
RISK MANAGEMENT

Pisk 4 inherent in the Group’s activities but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subjact to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is
critscal to the Group's continuing profitability and each individual within the Group & accountable for the risk
eupasures relating to hisar her responsibilities

The Group & exposed bo credit risk, Figuidity risk and market risk, Market risk is subdivided info interest rate
risk. Foreign currency risk and eguity price risk. Itis slso suibfect to operating risks. The independent risk control
process does not Include business risks such as changes in the enviranment technology and industry. They ore
maniiored through the Group's strategic planning process, The Board of Directors are ultimataly responsible
far the gverall risk management approach and for asgroving the 1lsk sivategies and principles

Credit risk

Credit risk is the nsk that one party Toa financal insirument wilf Fai to discharge an obigation and cawsa the
other party to incur a firancaml loss, Management of the Group attempts to control cregit risk by monitoring
credit exposures, limiting transactions with spacific counterparties, and continually assessing the
cradibworthiness of counterpartles.

The Group seeks to Hmit its credit risk with respect to tenants of (s Investment propertiss by monitoring
outitanding recehmasles. The Group limits credit risk weth regard to its bank halances by anly dealing with
reputable banks,

13
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The Group's masimum éxposure to oredit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of financial asers recognized
A1 the reporting date, 35 summarized bedow:

Joz3 2022
Cash and cash equivalents [excliding cash in hand) 24025,080 1,708,207
Trade and ather recewvable (excluding prepakd expenses and advsnce 4,539,973 1.524.451
paymaents to contractors)
6, bES, 03 3,233,658

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financal assets, the Group's exposure to oredit risk arises from
dafauit of the counterparty, with a maximum expasure agual e the carrying amount of these instrurmants.
The following table detals the risk profie of trade and other recehvables based on the Group's provision rsk
matriz. As the Group's histarical eradit oss eaperisnce does not show significantly different loss patterns from
different customars segments, the provision for loss allowance kased on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group's different customer bases,

31 Decernber 2023 31 December 2022
|festated — Note 28]
Aging brackets of  Estbmated  Expected  Lifetime Estimated  Expected  Lifetime
trade and othar total gross cradit ECL total gross credit ECL
recaivables carrying lass rate KD carrying loss rate KD
amaount at amount at %
default - default
From 1 to 90 days 5.0R4, 162 5% 268143 1,309,597 FiH 785,146
Shmne 90 days IL9E5 (48 LO0% 11,985 048 11.2_31.51‘.'1‘ 10056 11, EE'_.E'__E
17,073,210 12,253,191 13,591 416 12 066,965

ECL allowance af the recewabies other than cash and bank bzlancas are collectively assessed.
Blaximum exposure to credit risk

The Group's exposure to credit risk from bank balarnces, cash with a portfolio manager, fised deposits and
aceauntd recehvable arises from defzult of the counterparty, with a maximurm exposues squal to the cammyag
amount of these instruments. Where fmancial instrements are recorded at fair value, it represents the current
masirmum credit Flsk exgosure but not the masimum sk exposure that could arise n the future as a result of
changes in walues, The maximum exposure is the carrying amognt as descoribed in the consolidated statement
of financial pesition:

252 Liguidivy risk

Liguidity risk s the risk that the Group will be unable te meat its net furding requiraments. Liquidity risk cin
be caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades wihich may cause certain sources of funding to dry up
immediately. To puard apgzinst this rish, management has diversified funding soirces and assets are managed
with liguidity in mind, raintainkeg 2 heatthy balance of cash and cash egulvalents, and readity morketable
sEcurithes,

The liquidity profile of finamcizl Aabdlities reflects the projected cash flows which inchedes future interest
payrnents over the (e ol these financial llabsdlities, The table below summarizes the maturity proflile of the
Group's undiscounted finamcial liabilites as at 31 December Gased on contractual undiscounted repayment

ablgations:
Within From From More than Total
e Year  Onefto two years  Two to flve five years
years
2023
Loans and bank Tacllities BL, 725510 2 1 - 81725510
Accounts payabbes and 3,733,004 - - - 3,733.004
accruals
Total B5.458.614 - - - #5458, 514
2022
Loansand bank facllities g 112411 51557425 TH0836 1197823 92 G48,9565
dccounts pavabies and
acciuals B, 534,730 . ' ' & 31 70
Total 47,437,141 51,557 B35 TR EIE 1,197 823 100,973 625
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The Graup was unable o comply with the laan agreemant in relation ta the payrent of a laan instalimant of 3
Bark in Kuwait, according to the default dause contzined in the lnan contract, the grovp bocamao definouent in
paaving the entire loan, which resulted in current Rabillities exceeding current assets by an ameunt of 79,797,233
Euwartl dings [December 31, 2022 44052729 Euwalt denar). Subtequent to the date af the finandal
statements, the graug has rescheduled b5 debts with banks (MNote 15)

Basad on management estimates, the group has sufficlent resources to continue In opérational exstence for
the faresesable future, i additien to the regaying loans and financng interests when they 21l due through
oparating cash flows, or by salling sorme of its properties based on thelr market vahoes, as wasll 35 the passibility
af rescheduling some loan imstallments when they become due.

25.3 Market risk

Plarket risk is the risk that the value of an asset will fuctusts s 8 result af chenges in market prices, whether
those changes are caused by factors spacific to tha individual irvestment or its isswer or factors affecting all
imvestments traded In the market

blaricat risk is maraged on the basic of pre-determined asset allocations across varlous esset categories,

dghversificatlon of aszats In terms of geographical distrfbution and industry cencentration, a continuous appraisal

of market conditions and trends and managament’s estimate of long and shart term changes in falr value.
25.3.1 Interast rate risk

Interesl rate fisk is the rlsk that the fair valuear future caskh flows of fnancal instrement will fluctuzte because

of changes in marikes interast rates, The Group is axposed to interest fate risk on its term loan

The following table dermonstrates the sepsitbaty af the consolidated statement of income to reasonatsy

possinie changes in interest rates, with all other varizbles held constant;

Increase Effect an results
im basis far the year
points before taxes
2023 +100 [B17.255)
2022 +100 (526,490

25.3.1 Foreign currency risk

Faoreign ewrrancy risk-is the rigk that the fair value ar future caah fAows of 2 financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates

Currancy risk is managed on the basis of limits setermined by the Parent Company's Board of Directors and a
comtnuans assessment af the Em'uq:f'ﬁ Gpen pasithons and current and espected eachange raies moverments.
The Group dogs net-angage in foreign exchange trading and does not use dervetive finanelal Instrumepts,
Winere necestary matches currency exposures inhefenl in certain assets with liahilities in the sama or a
correlated ciurrency.

The Group had the following significent exposures denominated in farsign currencies a5 at 31 December;

2023 202z
{Restated]
AED [11,160.565) (18, 715.638)
LIsg 1,638,317 2,580,840
EGP 433,250 566,784

The follawing table demanstrates the sensithvity o a reasonably possibde change in the AED and S0 exchange
rate agalnst Kuwaltl dinar, with afl other wariakiles held constant, on the Group's loss and ather camprebenaive

beees,
2023 31 December 2022
e (Reststed - Nota 28) _
Change in Effect on  Effect on Changmin  Effecton Effoct an
currency rate Proflt equity curremcy Profit equity
¥ rate %

Currency

AED 5 558,023 54 935,781 -
ush 3% - 31,916 5% 129,042
EGF 5% = 11,563 % . 20335
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25.3.3 Equity price risk
Equity price risk arises from changes in tha feir values of equity financial assets. Equity price risk |s managed by
the managerment of the Graup. The quated equity price fisk exposure arlses from the Group's financial assels
at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The effect on other comprehensive income (83 8 result of a change in the fair value of financial assets at fair
valug through ather comprehensive income} an dus S0 a reasonal’y possible change In market indices, with sl
other variables hald constant & as follows:
31 December 2033 31 December 2022
Change in Effect on Change in Effect on
equity other equity ather
Price % comprehensiv Price % comprehensi
& income & incame

barket indices

Euwatt 5 299,914 45 306,203
(thers +5 21916 45 129,021

26 CAPITAL MAMNAGEMENT

The primary abjective af the Growg's capitsl management i3 Lo =nsure that it maintaing healthy capital ratios
in ordar to support its business and maxmize shareholdars’ valee

The Group managas (s capital structure and makes adjustments to it in bght of changes in busi ness conditians,

Mo changes wera made in the objectves, policies or processes during tha yvears ended 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2023.

Capital ermprises share capitsd, shafé premiurm, treasury shares, statutary reserve, wvoluntary reserve, other
raserve and accumilated losses,

The Group monltors capital using 8 gearlng rathe, which is net debt divided by tatal equity plus net debt The
Group includes within net debt; lcans and bank facilities, wade and other payable, les: cash and cash
eqilvalents. Total equity indudes share capltal, share premium. treadury shared, atutary reserva, welintary
reserve, other reserves and accumulated kosses.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratic and s calculated as mel debt divided by sum of met
debt and equity as follows:

31 Decembar 31 December 2022
2033 (Restated)

Loans and banks facilitios (Note 15] 81725510 o, 648,965
Less: eash and cash eguivalents (Mote ) 13039,115) (1,723,237
Met debt 79,686,395 L0925 728
Tomal eguity 37132974 36,932, 760
Tatal equity and net debt 115."3 19,368 12?.353.&_3-5
Gearing ratio (%) a2k 1%

2T FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUBMENTS

Far financlial assets and financizl labilities that are ligusd or having a shart term maturity Jess than twelvs
rl‘lnhlhs:l it is assumed that the carrying amounts approssmate to their fair vsivn. This assumption (s also applied
to varable rate financa! instruments.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclogsing the Fair vabus of fnancial Instroments

by valuation technigue:

= Leve| 1 = D.UIJ{.EE' 1una|:l,|u5tedf| rmarkst prices in active markars for identical asoats ar liabSities

- Level 2 — Valustion technigues Far which the bowest leval input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is drectly or inderectly ebservabla

- Level 3 — valuation techrigues for which tha lowest level input that is signdficant to tha fair value
mEasurement i3 unabsarvalie
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The following table shows an analysis of financial Instrements recorded at fzir value by leved of the faie value

Frigrhreiy:

31 December 2023 Level 1 Lavel 2 Total

Financial gidets at fair value through other comprohensive

income:

Quated seeurities 7,635,801 - TESE B

Unguotied securities - 1,19%,557 1,198 557
¥ bibh01 1 190 557 HESE 158

31 Decembar 2023 Level 1 Level 3 Total

Hnancial assets af falr walee through other comprehénsive

Cuotad sacurities. E. 704,401 a B, T4, 401

Unquoted securitics

1,275,359 1,275,359
B, 74,4591 1,275,359 5,579,850

Duiring the year endad 31 December 2033, thers were na trandfers between Level 1 and Level I fair valua
measurements, and no transfers into and out of Leve! 3 fair value measurements.

The movement in Level 3 farr value hlararchy during the year is given below:

As Unreallsed gain B at 31
1 January [loss) rocorded in© Decembar
= = equity
023 1,275,359 |75,802) 1,195 557
2022 1,479,073 (203,714} 1,775,358

il FRIOR YEARS RESTATEMENTS
The group investment in an aseociate has prevsodsly clossified s held for sale no lenger meet the criteris o be
classified as held for sale as per the requirement of [FRS- 5 (Mo 6 } accoedingly the group accoumied for such

mvestment using the equicy method retrospectively from the date of its classification as beld of sale as per the
requitermsmds of [FRS

Impact on the Consolidated Statement of Financizl Pastlon a at 3 lanuany 2022 and 31 Oec 3033 is shown

below
Ay Prior Yedrs Restated
Previously  Restatamants
Stated
1 January 2022
Imdestmeant in associate - 348,514 48,514
Total noR-current asssrs 131,423 432 245,514 132,171,946
fzsets held of sale G48. 514 {848,514} =
Other reserves 1037633 11,351,998} SB5. 825
Amount recognized in equiy related to assais held for
gale 1,351,098 {1,351,9598)
&5 at 310ecember 2022
Imvestment in associate 566,784 Sbb, FE4
Total non-current assets 134,290,255 566,784 134,857,039
Agzats hald of sale 248,514 {848,514) '
ket ressrves 2360229 11,633,658) T216,571
Amount recognizad in equity related ta assaty held for
4l 11,351.558) 1,351,998 -
Tatal Equity 37,214,090 (281,730) 36,932,760
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impact on the Consoligated Statement of comprehensive Incomea for the year ended 3t Decarrber 2002

As Presioushy Prior Years Restated
Stated Restatements
Foreign currency transfation F45. 776 [231,730) 63 546
Total other comprehensive incama 422,476 {281,730) 140,746
Tota! comprehensive Income [ [koss) for the year 2,483,051 (281,730} 2,201,231

The above-mentioned restatement hat no impact on the consolidated income staternent, consolidated
stasarment af cash fiows and sarnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2022

19 BOARD OF MRECTORS AND GENERAL ASSERSBLY MEEETING DECISION.
During tha current wear the general astembly meeting of the parent cempary hat been held an 12 Al 2023
and searoved the cansalidatad financlal staterments for the year ended 20232.
The extraordinary general assembly mepting of the parent comparny has been held on 29 April 2023 and
decided to amortize the eccumulated losses of KD 19,309,838 as of 31 Dec 20232 as follaws:
] an amaoent of KB 174,732 using woluntery reserve.
& & amount of KD 4,744,352 using statufory reserve
s An amount of KD 327,188 using share premium,
W &n amount of KD 14,063,536 using share capital [Distributed over 2400635 257 th arex),

faard of Directors aof the Parent Company held s meating on 24 March 2024 and the Consalidates Srancial
Ltztements for the year ended 31 December 2023 was appraved and 3lie propoced a essh dividend of 3 fil
per share and bonus share of 2%. This progosal is subject to approval of the General Assembly of Shareholdors
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